
 

1 

 

Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes 

 

Location: New Dawn Charter High School, 242 Hoyt Street, Brooklyn, New York 11217  

Date: Wednesday, July 23, 2021 

Time:  11:00 A.M. 

 

Board Members Present:  Mr. Ronald Tabano, Chairperson, Ms. Jane Sun, Vice Chair, 

Ms. Katharine Urbati, Treasurer, Mr. Brian Baer, Secretary 

Board Members Absent: Mr. Jonathon Carrington, Board Member.  

 

Staff Members/ Visitors Present: Dr. Sara Asmussen, Executive Director, NDCS, Mr. 

Jose Obregon, Director of Student Support & Operations, NDCS, Mr. Steve Ramkissoon, 

Director of Finance & HR, NDCS, Ms. Donna Lobato, Principal NDCHS, Mr. Zach 

Flory, Principal NDCHS II, Dr. Lisa DiGaudio, Curriculum Specialist, NDCS; Ms. Nazli 

Askin, Data Specialist, NDCS. 

 

Mr. Tabano, Chairperson, called the meeting to order at 11:00 A.M. He then asked if 

everyone had a chance to look at the June 2021, Board Minutes. All board members 

present acknowledged that they did. Mr. Tabano then asked for a motion to approve the 

June 2021 board minutes.  

 

I.    Minutes 

 

a. Resolution: June 2021, Board Minutes 

 

Motion: Mr. Brian Baer motioned to approve the June 2021, Board of Trustees meeting 

minutes. 

Motion Seconded: Ms. Jane Sun seconded the motion. 

Vote: The board unanimously voted to accept and approve the June 2021, Board of 

Trustees meeting minutes. 

  

II. Financials— Mr. Steve Ramkissoon – Director of Finance and HR  

    

Benchmark 4: Financial Condition 

Benchmark 5: Financial Management 

 

a. Resolution: June 2021 Financials 

 

Mr. Ramkissoon reported that Brooklyn is doing very well. The forgiveness of the PPP 

loan in combination with low expenditures in the areas of contracted security services 

and custodial service costs due to COVID played a big factor in the schools’ current 

healthy financial position. Mr. Ramkissoon also mentioned that there were some 



 

2 

 

unprojected expenses such as additional phones that needed to be purchased, additional 

CAT-V lines that needed to be installed, and the purchase of laptops for teachers. 

Additionally, there was moving expenses that were un-forecasted. However, overall, the 

Brooklyn school did very well even with the lower enrollment this year. 

 

Mr. Ramkissoon reported that Queens is similarly doing well. Mr. Ramkissoon also 

discussed the consolidated budget and reported that both schools were on sound financial 

ground. 

 

Mr. Tabano asked if there were any questions regarding the June 2021 financials. There 

were no questions. Mr. Tabano then asked if there was a motion to accept the June 2021 

financials.  

 

Motion: Ms. Jane Sun motioned to accept and approve the June 2021 financials. 

Motion Seconded: Mr. Brian Baer seconded the motion. 

Vote: The board unanimously voted to accept and approve the June 2021 financials.  

 

 

b. Audit update - Mr. Steve Ramkissoon – Director of Finance and HR 

 

Mr. Ramkissoon reported that a Queen's audit has been scheduled. They will audit 

Queens on August 10, 2021, and Brooklyn on August 12, 2021.  Mr. Ramkissoon further 

briefed the board members that all the employees and student files are selected and ready 

for review. Additionally, the accounting books will be closed, and any adjustments 

needed will be made. 

 

c. Friends of update – Mr. Steve Ramkissoon – Director of Finance and HR 

 

Mr. Ramkissoon informed the board that the Friends of corporation now has an EIN on 

file. Also, he and Dr. Asmussen called the auditor and was told that since the school has 

no funds in that account, all that is required is to file the 990, which the school did. 

Therefore, the school is set for the tax year. He also indicated that he is still negotiating 

with Barone Management. Currently, as per the contract agreement, the school will have 

to pay half of anything over $25,000 in legal fees. Mr. Ramkissoon stated that he is 

negotiating for a better deal.  The landlord did agree to do a CPI annual increase over the 

30 years on this this clause. The agreement includes a $800 a week subsidy to support 

security services for one security officer at the school. Mr. Ramkissoon is anticipating 

that before the summer is over, all legal documents needed will be signed and finalized.  

 

d.  GKV Update – Mr. Brian Baer, Board Member 

 



 

3 

 

Mr. Brian Baer stated there is a minor balance of $750. which is still owed to GKV. 

Currently, he is waiting for an updated invoice statement from the vendor, which should 

be delivered by tomorrow. Mr. Baer also indicated that he had an earlier conversation 

with Joe Barbagallo from GKV. There is a process in motion to get some iterations of an 

approval letter between both party attorneys. The goal is to close the project out before 

the end of the summer. If things should not work out, Mr. Baer said that he will be 

reaching out to a couple of architectural organizations to help close the project out before 

the end of the summer or the start of the new school year in order to obtain the COO.  

 

Mr. Tabano asked where the school stands financially with GKV and what was finally 

resolved with them. Mr. Steve Ramkissoon answered that GKV is fully paid except for 

the $750 for which there was no invoice. Once the invoice is received and this is paid, 

they would close out the project.  

 

Dr. Asmussen agreed and stated the problem was the letter they wanted Dr. Asmussen to 

sign which stated that after payment, GKV was going to bill the school for a $241,000 

charge for what seems like a retaliatory charge. Dr. Asmussen stated that the school 

attorney advised her that if she signed such a letter, it would be an admittance of liability 

and that the school would owe GKV that amount of money. 

 

Mr. Tabano will follow up with Joe Barbagallo. 

 

III. HR (Hiring)—Nazli Askin  

      

Benchmark 7: Organizational Capacity 

 

Ms. Askin informed the board that the hiring process continues for both schools. In 

Brooklyn, a special education teacher and an internship coordinator were hired. An offer 

letter was sent to the writing teacher candidate as well. Ms. Askin stated that the school 

still needs an art teacher, an aspiring teacher, a global history teacher, a special education 

teacher, and an ELA teacher. Additionally, Ms. Askin informed the board that two (2) 

teachers submitted their resignation letters recently. These two were the global history 

teacher and the US history teacher. Additionally, there will be some staffing position 

changes. Ms. Saloni who is currently the ELA teacher in Brooklyn will be moving to the 

global studies teaching position. Mr. Fennel, who is the Global history teacher, will be 

teaching U.S. history. Mr. Tabano asked if these resignations were a surprise. Dr. 

Asmussen replied that Mr. Eckstrom’s was not, but Ms. Eddy’s resignation was a 

surprise. Mr. Tabano asked when the notice of resignation was received and Dr. 

Asmussen replied that it was received two weeks ago.  

 

Ms. Askin continued to report that at the Queens school, an ELA teacher, guidance 

counselor, an aspiring teacher, a special education teacher, and a global studies teacher 



 

4 

 

were all hired. Queens still needs a Global History teacher, a US history, math, science, 

and art teacher. Mr. Tabano commented that the schools are doing well in the hiring 

process considering how difficult it is to get teachers because of the current situation. He 

also asked where the school was getting its candidates. Ms. Askin replied from Indeed, 

Craig’s List, school job board sites. Brooklyn College, and Teachers College. 

 

Mr. Brain Baer asked if TEACH for America still exists. Dr. Asmussen replied that it still 

does however, they are not a good match for NDCS. They are best suited for traditional 

schools. Additionally, they are more geared towards elementary and middle schools 

rather than high school.   

 

IV. Contracts—Jose Obregon  

      

Benchmark 6: Board Oversight & Governance 

 

a. Resolution: Furniture Contract 

 

Mr. Jose Obregon briefed the board that he obtained three furniture quotes. One of the 

quotes was from Hertz, which is a company that did the initial installation of furniture 

here in Queens. The two other quotes came from School Specialty and School Outfitters. 

The pricing between Hertz furniture and school Specialty are competitive. Both bids 

came in just above $12,000. The School Outfitters quote was excessive. School Outfitters 

is asking for $20,000 for the same furniture quoted by Hertz and School Specialty. Mr. 

Obregon further stated that considering the experience with Hertz furniture, his 

recommendation to the board is that it goes with School Specialty. School Specialty is 

also willing to do installation. This installation includes the installation of the 

whiteboards and the bulletin boards. In the past, similar installation jobs were done by 

Barone Management vendors. The school was charged those installations. 

 

Mr. Tabano asked the board if there was a motion to accept and approve the School 

Specialty furniture bid for the Queens school.  

 

Motion: Ms. Jane Sun motioned to accept and approve the School Specialty furniture bid 

for the Queens school.  

Motion Seconded: Mr. Brian Baer seconded the motion. 

Vote: The board unanimously voted to accept and approve the School Specialty furniture 

bid for the Queens school. 

 

b. Resolution: Video System Contract 

 

Mr. Obregon then proceeded to brief the board on two (2) video conference equipment 

bids. One bid is from TGI Office Automation, which is a local vendor and just a few 



 

5 

 

blocks away from the Brooklyn school. The other bid is from Atlantic, who the school 

does business with currently including the lease of the main copy machine in Brooklyn. 

Mr. Obregon stated that after speaking with Dr. Asmussen, she agrees that we should go 

with the local vendor. Mr.  Obregon stated that TGI visited the school, and they seem 

easy to work with. Both bids have the same cost for the same equipment.  

 

Mr. Tabano asked Dr. Asmussen if there any problem with not having a third bid. Dr. 

Asmussen replied that not at this price. Mr. Tabano asked the board members if there 

were any questions regarding the TGI bid. There were no questions and Mr. Tabano 

asked if there was a motion to accept the contract TGI bid.  

 

Motion: Ms. Katharine Urbati motioned to accept and approve the TGI Office 

Automation bid for the Brooklyn school.  

Motion Seconded: Ms. Jane Sun seconded the motion. 

Vote: The board unanimously voted to accept and approve the TGI Office Automation 

bid for the Brooklyn school. 

 

V. Facilities—Jose Obregon 

       

Benchmark 6: Board Oversight & Governance  

 

Mr. Obregon reported that pertaining to the Brooklyn facilities, there was a sprinkler 

system inspection that met the monthly requirement. The inspection went well. Further, 

Mr. Obregon informed the board that he is still waiting on the contractor that installed the 

door to get back with a repair estimate for the door that was damaged during an incident 

involving a student at the school. Pertaining to the Queens facilities, Mr. Obregon will 

continue to reach out to Barone Management to schedule the upgrades that they promised 

that they would do in the building.  

 

VI. Grants 

Benchmark 1: Student Performance 

Benchmark 3: Culture, Climate, and Student & Family Engagement 

Benchmark 8: Mission & Key Design Elements 

 

a. ESSER and CCR grants updates—Dr. Sara Asmussen 

b. Community Outreach Team—Dr. Sara Asmussen 

c. All other grants—Dr. Sara Asmussen 

 

Dr. Asmussen briefed the board on the ESSER grant. She indicated that the school is 

going to proceed with the roof. She also stated that Mr. Brian Baer is looking into some 

people that the schools might be able to work with. Dr. Asmussen indicated that she is 

100% completely on board with retaining Benchmark to do the work. She stated that 



 

6 

 

Benchmark has been very good to the school. Benchmark gave one of their college 

student positions to one of our students, specifically one of our graduates, who is not in 

college but checked out. Benchmark is also donating school supplies for next school year.  

 

Dr. Asmussen further stated that all the other grants are going well, “A Game” is 

wrapping up. Dr. Asmussen also reported to the board that she believes that the schools 

really need an outreach team. Dr Asmussen explained a volatile issue with a student over 

the summer, which is past years we have never had behavioral issues during summer 

school. Dr. Asmussen believes that this type of behavior is going to happen on a regular 

basis in September. She believes that isolation has taken a toll on everyone, and it can be 

stressful and will probably be worse for our students. Students have not been in school 

and suddenly they are going to be together, dealing with masks and social distancing. 

Therefore, it is important that we have all our stuff on call and on site all the time. We 

cannot afford having staff our doing home visits.   

 

Dr. Asmussen also stated not having current staff conducting home visits is going to be a 

problem since we know that we are going to have a struggle getting students back to 

school, especially with the Delta variant.  Therefore, Dr. Asmussen proposed that the 

school put together an outreach team. This team will not just get the paperwork needed 

for discharge, but more importantly, they will connect students to services. The team will 

determine what students need like the mental health caseworker model. For example, the 

team will address student needs that include items such as food stamps, housing, and 

Medicaid.  

 

Dr. Asmussen proposed that the school start with one outreach team that works at both 

schools. Dr. Asmussen also stated that she was going through all the data from last 

semester. She noticed many students that just dropped off. For example, students who 

were doing fine prior to the pandemic, and in the beginning of the pandemic are now 

struggling with school. Dr. Asmussen stated that the school needs to reach those kids, get 

them back in, and get them re-engaged. She further stated that she believes that creating a 

specific outreach team is the only way the school is going to be focus the time and 

commitment needed to reengage these students. Dr. Asmussen stated that she would like 

to pay for this outreach team with the ESSER funds but not make it part of our charter. It 

can be viewed as an experiment. ESSER can pay for it for three years and then the board 

can decide at the end of the three years if it wishes to continue this initiative. Dr. 

Asmussen believes that the school will want to keep this initiative. Dr. Asmussen stated 

that she will do the research and analyze the numbers in the future. 

 

Mr. Tabano asked the board members if there were any questions for Dr. Asmussen. Mr. 

Tabano then stated that he believes that this is a great idea. He further stated that he 

believes that we will need such a program. He also believes that the ESSER funds are 

perfect for it because it involves credit recovering and student recovering. Therefore, 



 

7 

 

there is good justification, and the money is available for such an initiative for the next 

three years. 

 

 Ms. Jane Sun stated that she agrees with Mr. Tabano. She believes that this a great idea 

to improve the mental health of our students, especially using the ESSER grant funds. 

Mr. Tabano asked the board members if they had any questions regarding this initiative.  

 

Mr. Tabano stated that the creation of such an outreach group needed to be voted on and 

approved by the board and asked the board members if there were any questions 

pertaining to this initiative. Mr. Brian Baer asked where the school is finding the staff. 

Dr. Asmussen stated that she would go to social worker and mental health worker 

resources. She does not want educators to fill these positions. Mr. Brian Baer stated that 

if the school needed help finding such professionals, his company has social workers on 

staff and while they are trained in disaster, they know people within the outreach world.   

 

Mr. Tabano then asked if there was a motion to hire additional staff to serve as outreach 

workers for the recovery of our students from the loss of the pandemic. 

 

Motion: Ms. Jane Sun motioned to hire additional staff to serve as outreach workers for 

the recovery of students from the loss of the pandemic.   

Motion Seconded: Mr. Brian Baer seconded the motion. 

Vote: The board unanimously voted to hire additional staff to serve as outreach workers 

for the recovery of students from the loss of the pandemic.   

 

VII. School Reports   

Benchmark 6: Board Oversight & Governance 

Benchmark 9: Enrollment, Recruitment, & Retention 

 

a. Brooklyn—Ms. Donna Lobato, Principal 

 

Ms. Lobato reported that there are 77 students enrolled in summer school. Ms. Lobato 

also reported that the school graduated 30 students. Regarding the August 2021, 

graduation, there are 36 students who will potentially graduate. Ms. Lobato indicated that 

out of the 36 possible graduates. Perhaps 15 to 18 students will graduate. Ms. Lobato 

reported that the June 2021 graduation ceremony turned out extremely well including a 

great block party and the senior brunch. There was a very good turnout for that event. 

Ms. Lobato also informed the board regarding the incident where a student became 

violent after refusing to turn in his cell phone and then proceeded to damaged one of the 

entry doors to the building. Ms. Lobato spoke with the necessary officials which agree 

that the student should transfer out. Ms. Lobato also mentioned to the board that Jose 

Obregon is getting the estimates for the cost of fixing the door and these costs will be 



 

8 

 

passed on to the student’s parents/guardians. Additionally, Ms. Lobato stated that one of 

the school counselors is working with the family on the transfer.  

 

Mr. Tabano stated that as far as restitution, he was not confident that it can be obtained 

from the student’s parents/guardians. Ms. Lobato agreed but thought that the school 

should follow through in any case and send the student’s family the bill for repairs. Ms. 

Lobato also stated that the school lawyer and the student’s family lawyer agreed that a 

repair bill should be sent to the student’s parents or guardians.  

 

b. Queens—Mr. Zach Flory, Principal 

 

Mr. Flory reported that there are currently 69 students enrolled for the summer school. He 

reported that they are now finally able to meet with students to schedule their classes.  

Over the last two years, since all students were 9th graders in year 1 and had the same 

schedules, and the pandemic forced the school to go remote, Queens students have never 

had the one-on-one scheduling that is done in Brooklyn.  Mr. Flory reported that students 

were enjoying the personal interaction of in person scheduling.  Students are also happy 

to know what they need to do to graduate. Additionally, Mr. Flory informed the board 

that the school took full advantage of Regents waivers and scheduled students 

accordingly so they can benefit.   

 

As far as student recruitment, Mr. Flory indicated that there were three (3) students that 

came to the school at the end of the Spring semester. The school is reaching out to 

principals and counselors of other schools. However, currently a lot of counselors are out 

of their school buildings at this time of the year. However, Mr. Flory is anticipating staff 

returning to their schools for future contact. Additionally, the school will be sending 

postcards out to all the Queens locations and especially to the schools that NDCHS II has 

worked with in the past. Mr. Flory also mentioned that the school has hired new staff and 

is trying to fill other vacant positions. Mr. Flory stated that he anticipates filling those 

positions easily before the end of the summer. Mr. Tabano asked what the daily in person 

attendance looks like. Mr. Flory replied that there is an average of 20 to 25 students 

coming in each day.  

 

Mr. Tabano asked, what type of safety protocols is the school adhering to such as social 

distancing. Mr. Flory replied that classrooms are large enough so that with the number of 

students coming in, they can be easily distanced, and adjustments can be made to 

accommodate the number of students coming in any given day.  

 

Mr. Tabano also asked if there were students who remote at the same time or is 

instruction being conducted in person all the time. Mr. Flory responded that there are 

students participating remotely. Additionally, some of the Queens students are 

participating in Brooklyn classes remotely.  



 

9 

 

 

VIII. Student Performance—Sara Asmussen  

 

Benchmark 1: Student Performance 

 

Dr. Asmussen also stated that she wanted to look at how students who are economically- 

disadvantaged, SPED, or ELL are accounted for. Therefore, Dr. Asmussen stated that she 

looked at this year and identified why the State reports that all our numbers are always 

different. Steve Ramkissoon indicated that the school has 263 FTS. In actuality, the 

school serviced 361 different students. Even so, this number is down about 100 students 

from what it normally is. Dr. Asmussen attributed this to the pandemic. Dr. Asmussen 

further stated that she is confident that this number will go up to approximately 460 

students by next year. Regarding the 361 students, she used ATS data because it is 

always two years behind. However, economically disadvantaged students on ATS, for 

some reason, is down right now. 

 

Dr. Asmussen was able to identify 361 different students. Of those 361 students, 79 

students, which is almost 22%, graduated. In a traditional school, about 25% of the 

school would be seniors. Therefore, Dr. Asmussen believes that NDCHS is right on 

target. This is a difficult year to compare NDCHS to other schools, so the NYSED 

retention and enrollment calculator was used to get estimates of comparisons. This year, 

the results were favorable. According to Dr. Asmussen calculations, almost 80% of 

NDCHS students should be classified as ED. Last year, the school was at 85% ED. As far 

as SPED, the school should be at 17.9%. NDCHS was at 40% this year. This is real time 

data from ATS. Of the school’s total census, 142 students were SPED and 19% of them 

graduated. So again, this mirrors what the overall school numbers are. On the 27 SPED 

students who graduated, 57% of them received regent’s diplomas, which is fantastic, 

especially with all the different graduation pathways NYSED has available. Dr. 

Asmussen also stated that the other item that she is excited about is the school’s ELL 

numbers. This year, we should have had a point 1% student according to the NYSED E & 

R calculator and in actuality the school had 9%. Of those 9%, 19% graduated with a 

regent’s diploma.  

 

Dr. Asmussen reported that in reference to retention rate, the school retention rates are all 

in the 87 to 89% for all groups. Dr. Asmussen stated that the school has 97% overall 

retention rate. This means that students will continue with the school. 93% of our SPED 

students are continuing and 92% of our ELL students are continuing. Therefore, in terms 

of student outcomes and performance, NDCHS has beat the state on every single one of 

the measures of the three special groups according to the E&R Calculator. Dr. Asmussen 

stated that this is the first time NDCHS has ever done this. In the past, NDCHS has 

always made the SPED and the ED benchmarks. The school has never made the ELL 

benchmark. However, Dr. Asmussen stated that this year, the school made the ELL 



 

10 

 

benchmarks. This is attributable so some degree to the work that some people have done. 

For example, Dr. Asmussen stated that Jose Obregon has contact with many of the 

school’s Spanish speaking parents. Subsequently, he reaches out to many of them 

weekly. This has impacted our ELL participation. Dr. Asmussen stated that she will do 

Queens next since the annual report is due in four days and she get that information to the 

board. Dr. Asmussen stated that she is sure Queens is above their district in ELL and 

SPED. Dr. Asmussen believes that Queens will be fine. Outcomes are due on October 15. 

 

IX. New Business  

 

Mr. Tabano asked Dr. Asmussen was there any new business. Dr. Asmussen replied that 

she will be needing the board member’s addresses to post for the next board meeting. It 

can be a business address preferably. The board members agreed that the next board 

meeting will be on August 17, 2021, at 11:00 AM 

 

X. Adjournment  

 

The board meeting adjourned at 12:00 PM. 


